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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL. APPEARANCE

Located 2.8 miles north of Ridgely, Maryland, on the 
west side of Maryland Route 312, Oak Lawn is a large 
rectangular 2 1/2 story brick structure with a brick arcade 
and two-story kitchen extending from the back. The main 
house was erected in 1783."and the kitchen and arcade were 

v added later, some time before 1798/ The east facade of 
the main block, laid in all header bond (unusual in Eastern 
Shore buildings) without a water table, is five bays tong 

- with a central door of eight panels. Two small bull's- 
eyes in the top two panels allow light into the hall. Common 
bond was used throughout the rest of the structure. A belt 
course three bricks wide extends around the house.

A two-story porch on the east facade was built in two 
stages during the nineteenth century. Its first floor is 
believed to date from the third quarter of the century. It 
is constructed in a highly decorative style with jigsawn 
brackets that suggest three arches across the front. The 
gallery was added later and a door was adapted from a pre­ 
vious window opening located immediately above the first 
floor entrance. This second-floor gallery was removed in 
July 1974, and the lower section roofed to form a one-story 
porch.

The cornice extends across both the front (east) and 
rear (west) of the house and is composed of courses of 
large ogee-shaped modillions, wall of Troy molding, and 
carved egg and dart molding. The rear cornice lacks the 
lower, classically inspired moldings, but does continue 
the use of carved modillion blocks. The ridge of the main 
gable roof run north-south and there are three pedimented 
dormers on both the front and rear slopes. Two small four- 
pane casements flank a round recessed panel in the south 
end gable of the main block which bears the initials "B S" 
and the date 1783 etched in plaster.

The arcade extends from the north side of the west 
facade. It has four brick arches supported by three brick 
piers on the south side; in its north wall is a single, 
eight-panel door. In the end of the arcade that adjoins 
the kitchen is a small room with shelves which formerly 
had a window and possibly was used as a small pantry or 
larder. The three-bay-long kitchen wing has only one room 
on the first floor. A huge arched fireplace in a ruinous 
condition stands at the north end. A small enclosed stair 
ascends to the second floor on the north side of the chimney. 
While there are now two tiny rooms and a hall on the second 
floor, it was originally one room with a small fireplace 
at its west end. Framing one side of the open stairwell is 
a Chinese trellis balustrade.

The interior of both floors of the main portion of the 
house is composed of a central stair hall with two rooms on 
each side. The two east rooms on the first floor have raised
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Oak Lawn is a fine example of a small Eastern Shore 
Maryland plantation house of the late eighteenth century. 
Built in 1783 by Benjamin/Sylvester, a large landowner 
and planter, the house still contains all of its original 
woodwork. There are stair railings done in a local inter­ 
pretation of the Chinese 'Chippendale style in both the main 
house and the kitchen wing. The arcade which joins the 
house and kitchen is one of only a few arcades known in 
Maryland's extant early buildings, but the others have 
been changed while the one at Oak Lawn remains unaltered.

Benjamin Sylvester was a man representative of that 
class of Maryland planters who, though not of the elite, 
made a good living and practiced such of those graces of 
aristocratic life as they could afford. In the 1750's, this 
group would have consisted of a little less than one-third 
of Maryland's planters.^ By the 1780's when Oak Lawn was 
built, they probably constituted a somewhat larger percentage 
of the population.

The families that fell into this category generally 
had a fair number of slaves'and numerous cattle and horses. 
Their houses were of a good size, though not as large as the 
mansions of the truly wealthy. Because possession of much 
land was a symbol of success and status, they acquired as 
much of it as they could.^ In 1783, the year he built Oak 
Lawn, then called White Hall, Benjamin Sylvester owned 
1,145 acres of land and had twenty slaves'. He had only 
a small number of horses and cattle, but increased this 
number in the next twelve years before his death. In his 
will he mentions six horses, twenty head of cattle, and 
twenty head of sheep. In 1790, thirty-eight slaves are 
listed for him in the U.S. Census.

Many of the poorer families lived in very small houses 
of only one or two rooms in the eighteenth century,^ thus 
Oak Lawn is quite a large house for this period. Compared

1Aubrey C. Land, "Planters of Colonial Maryland,: Mary­ 
land Historical Magazine, LXVII (Summer, 1972) , 116.    

2Louis B. Wright, The Cultural Life of the American 
Colonies, 1607-1763. (New York: Harper & Row, 1957), pp.3-4

3 Land, p. 122. u j. ™ i\(See continuation sheet No. 1)_____
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7 . ~~~ DESCRIPTION , continued

panel wainscoting and window shutters. All of the rooms have 
wide mantels around the diagonally placed fireplaces. The 
mantel in the southeast room is perhaps the best designed of 
these four on the first floor, having a crossetted surround, 
carved console brackets on the frieze and a blocked, highly 
decorated cornice shelf. The hall is divided by a transverse 
elliptical arch on fluted pilasters. The stairs leading to the 
second floor are at the west end of the hall. The design of 
the Chinese trellis balustrade is somewhat more bulky in 
appearance than that of the kitchen chamber, perhaps attributable 
to the steep incline of the stair and the thickness of the 
trellis slats.

In the northwest corner of the southwest first floor room 
stood an auxiliary stair leading from the attic to the second 
floor. This stair was apparently removed about 1910 when a 
bathroom was installed in a portion of the second floor chamber. 
The rooms upstairs are finished in simple woodwork fashioned in 
a basic Federal style.

Under the main section of the house is a full basement of 
four rooms with brick partition walls and floors. The attic 
is finished, containing three large rooms with plastered
walls .

Also on the property is a brick carriage house in poor 
condition, later altered when framed walls were built to re­ 
place some of the brick walls which had collapsed. This 
building is believed to be that mentioned in the 1798 tax assess­ 
ment of the property.

8. SIGNIFICANCE, continued

to the holdings of the wealthiest early planter families, such 
as the Carrolls and Dulanys in Maryland, Sylvester's estate 
may not seem very great. But in contrast to the meagre existence 
the majority of the farming population eked out of the soil; 
the Sylvesters were very well off indeed.

When Benjamin Sylvester died in 1795, he left Oak 
Lawn to his daughter Martha, wife of Isa^rc Purnell. Under their 
supervision, the plantation prospered further. In 1798, sixty- 
six slaves lived at Oak Lawn. Purnell owned a total of juot 
over 4,000 acres of land and half a dozen small dwelling houses. 
The value assigned to the large house at White Hall by the tax 
assessor was $1,300, one of the few homes to be assessed at 
over one thousand dollars in Caroline County. 4___________

^Federal Tax Assessment of 1798,records for Caroline 
County, Maryland, Hall of Records, Annapolis, Maryland. ____

/ . . 6PJ3. 921-724
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The Purnells 1 son Frederick owned Oak Lawn until 1833 when he 
sold it to Abraham Jump, Jr., another well-known citizen of the 
county.

In 1853, the Reverend Greenbury W. Ridgely purchased Oak 
Lawn and 800 acres surrounding it for $8,000. Born in Kentucky, 
Rev. Ridgely attended law school in Connecticut and studied 
law on Maryland's Western Shore where he became a member of 
the Maryland bar. He practiced law for a time with Henry Clay, 
but left to attend the Theological Seminary at Princeton. He 
was rector at Protestant Episcopal churches in Newtown and 
Chester in Pennsylvania. In 1853, he moved to Caroline County 
where he purchased several thousand acres of land. He conducted 
services in many places in the county which had no church nearby 
but was not assigned to a parish.5

The town of Ridgely was founded in 1867 as a stop on the 
Queenstown and Harrington Railroad, It was planned by several 
friends of Rev. Ridgely's. He cooperated with them in selling 
some of his land for the city site as well as in other ways, 
and in turn these men named the town after him. When the rail­ 
road venture did not succeed, the town was built anyway by a 
real estate firm."

The Rev. Ridgely owned Oak Lawn for eight years and it was 
he who first named it Oak Lawn, or Oakland as it was written 
in the deeds until 1927. His son, William S. Ridgely, 
owned the house until 1871.

^Edward M. Noble and others, History of Caroline County, 
Maryland, from its Beginnings. (Reprint of 1920 ed.; Baltimore: 
Regional Publishing Company, 1971), p. 302.

6Noble, pp. 299-300.
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Works Progress Administration Writers' Program. Maryland, A 
Guide to the Old Line State. American Guide Series. 
Reprint of 1940 ed. New York: Oxford University Press, 
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